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Petroleum Development Oman L.L.C.

 www.pdo.co.om/PDO/CommercialInfo/
	Local VendoR, Pre-Contract Award - ProductS Registration:  Form L1

	This form should be used by local Vendors seeking registration with PDO before the award of a Contract for the supply of products to PDO.  Local Vendors can also log on to http://mus-ws-024/PPT/Vendor/ register for floated contracts and submit their bids prior to registration with PDO.

	1.  Company’s Name – For local Company, including foreign Company’s branch office locally registered

	*

	2.  PDO Vendor Code (If available)   
	

	3.  Company’s Address
	*

	Postal Address  

	Tel  
	E-mail   (For PO transmission)

	Fax 

	Web-site     

	4.  Company’s Ownership – List major owners
	*

	a.  Person Name - if owned by individuals
	% Ownership   

	
	

	
	

	
	

	
	

	b.  Company Name - If owned by companies
	% Ownership   

	
	

	5.  Company’s Years Established       
	*

	
	Oman
	Elsewhere (Please specify)
	

	a. Local Company
	
	

	b. Principal – If the local Company is representing a foreign manufacturer or stockist
	
	

	
	
	

	6.  Omani Agency Certificate – If the local Company is representing a foreign manufacturer or stockist /Omani Manufacturer’s Permit – If the local Company is the manufacturer/Manufacturer’s or Stockist’s distribution letter – If the local Company is a distributor in the following categories:  Civil, General, Computer & Telecoms, Safety, Hand Tools, Lubricants, Marine products, Welding consumables, Chemicals.  (Cross out as applicable)
	*

	Agency Certificate/Manufacturer Permit/Distribution Letter’s Number
	Issue Date 
	Expiry Date      

	7.  Principal’s Identity – If the local Company is representing a foreign manufacturer or stockist
	*      

	Company Name : 

	Postal Address   :                            

	Tel : 
	E-mail   

	Fax +495147976844
	Web-site : 

	Contact Person’s Name : 
	E-mail : 
	Tel : 

	8. Product Groups Requesting Registration for.  Visit http://www.pdo.co.om/NR/rdonlyres/13EEF59B-2723-4F77-B81B-4CFD69AE1280/0/ProductGroupCategoryExternal.xls for the selection of the Product Groups the local Company is seeking registration in   


	*

	    PGSC Code
	Group Description 

	
	

	
	

	
	

	
	

	
	

	9. Company’s Verification
	*

	I hereby confirm that I have read, understood and accepted the information provided in this form and that the details presented by my Company with respect to this registration request are correct.

	Company’s Most Senior Representative’s Name : 

	Position : 
	Signature
	Date : 

	Additional Information
If you provide additional information for any of the questions, include it as a numbered attachment and clearly cross reference it in the asterisked check box of the applicable question.

	Mail this form to OmanTradanet L.L.C,.PO Box 425, PC 118, Sultanate of Oman, or submit it to the OmanTradanet office in Rusail, prior to submitting a bid for any tender.  Address pre-registration documents submission queries to e-mail  Pdovr@otn.com.om or   Tel:.+968 24153200 or Fax:+968 24153205.



	Submit below documents with application Form:  These documents are pre-requisites to registration

	Local Omani companies including local agents of foreign companies, local branch offices of foreign companies

	All commercial documents submitted shall be copies of original documents

	1. A copy of the Sultanate of Oman, Ministry of Commerce’s Commercial Registration Certificate 

2. A copy of the Sultanate of Oman, Ministry of Commerce’s computer printout, showing the ownership details 

and the areas of business, which the Company is allowed to operate in Oman 
3. A copy of the Sultanate of Oman, Ministry of Commerce, Omani Agency Certificate – If the local Company is representing a foreign manufacturer or stockist /Omani Manufacturer’s Permit – If the local Company is the manufacturer/Manufacturer’s or Stockist’s distribution letter – If the local Company is a distributor in the following categories:  Civil, General, Computer & Telecoms, Safety, Hand Tools, Lubricants,, Marine products, Welding consumables, Chemicals.  (Cross out as applicable)
4. A copy of the Principal’s Distributor agreement (required only for distributors)  
5. A copy of the Ministry of Commerce Manufacturer’s Permit (Required only for local manufacturers)
6. Bank details on the Company’s letter head including the following:  Bank name, Branch name, Account Holder’s name,  Bank key,(eg. Sort Code, ABA, BLS, Swift code, etc.), Iban number, Invoice Currency, Account number, Account number currency, Country, signature and name and title of account’s authorised person.
7. A maximum of one A4 page giving a brief explanation on the cause of any ongoing or outstanding dispute or claim in a civil or criminal court, parties involved, the date the dispute was officially filed in court, the names of the companies involved, dates, the current legal status of the dispute and the date of that status (If applicable) 

8. Technical information on the products which the company is applying registration for.

9. A copy of Ministry of Taxation Tax Certificate.




c) Customer reference list of last five years, as a minimum, showing details of work/services, relevant to applicable work category, performed; value, whether as main contractor or sub contractor, project or order nature, duration of project execution, period of completed and ongoing project(s), industry sector, experience of project with Shell Group of companies, 

	specific experience with the oil and gas industry.   

d) Details of industrial facility, size of establishment, location, etc.  

e) Details of office facilities, office automation, electronic support facilities, networking, etc., plant, machinery and equipment.

g) Information on resources, manpower, with details of managerial staff, technical staff, design and engineering staff (if relevant), production staff, shop supervisory staff, quality assurance staff, quality control (inspection) staff.

h) Omanisation policy and plan, Omanisation details with number of Omani staff employed. 

i) Training scheme and staff selection process

j) ISO 9000 accreditation evidence where already certified.  Where not, future plans for ISO 9000 accreditation.

j) Company organisation chart, which should clearly show and include quality assurance and quality control (inspection) personnel

k) Quality assurance and quality management system details

l) Corporate quality manual, quality system procedures, work procedures/instructions, etc..If the volume of quality system and technical work procedures is large, then furnish complete index / list of such documentation.

m) HSE policy and organisation; delegation of HSE responsibilities; safety policy; HSE manual;  HSE audits and inspection, HSE training, HSE records for last 5 years, emergency response procedure, hazard identification and management, monitoring methodology of sub contractor HSE management system, journey management system, accident reporting and invetigation system, HSE performance data management.

Ref:  UEC OETS document A,:\OTI4.ZOO1.001.doc       

.



	For Civil products groups additional requirements, if applying for registration before being awarded with a Contract, are as below:
APPLICATION FORM FOR PRODUCT APPROVAL

· Civil and Building Works
            :
Materials and Equipment

· Building Services


:
Materials and Equipment

· PDO Oil and Gas Facilities
:            Materials and Equipment

Instructions to Applicants

1. The applicant shall complete all parts of this form; where the question is not relevant to the particular application the applicant shall write “not applicable” [N/A].

2. Where the applicant can not answer a relevant question even after the necessary research or investigation he shall answer “not known” [N/K]. Applications where all questions in the form are not completed shall be rejected.

3. Trade literature or other supporting information shall be original copies or good quality photocopies. Poor quality support literature shall be ignored. Support information shall be neatly bound, contained in an envelope together with the completed form. Such envelopes shall be labelled “Product Approval” for the attention of UIB/4

4. Samples shall be boxed and clearly labelled to identify the product and relevant application.





	PART  ‘A’  - TECHNICAL AND QUALITY INFORMATION


	A.1
Product Class 

	
	A.1.1
In which class(es) does your application for product Approval apply [see PDO Product Class List]. If more than one please specify.


N.B. Each product to have a separate application.
	Class(es):- 

1. ……………………

2. ……………………

3. ……………………

4. ……………………


	A.1.2
A.1.2
Provide a short description of the product named in this 
application.

	
	A.2
National and International Standards

	
	A.2.1
Is the product in compliance with a National or International Standard? If “yes” provide the relevant reference No. If “no” state “no”

	ISO
……………...........

BS
…………………...

ASTM
…………………...

ANSI
…………………...

SIS
…………………...

IS
……………………

Others
……………………


	A.2.2
Does the product comply with the specification/Standards contained in the relevant Company Specification(s)? [copies of these document are  available with the consultants attached list]

	Yes

		
		No.

		
				
	A.3
Test Reports

	
	A.3.1
Has a recognised independent laboratory tested your product in Oman or elsewhere, with test facilities? 

	Yes

		
		No.

		
				
	A.3.2
If yes, list below what test)s) have been carried out. For each test provide the following: Name of testing authority, address, telephone and fax numbers, test report No., date Of the test and results [pass or failed]

[Extra sheets may be attached]

	
	A.3.3
Copies of all test reports/Certificates shall be provided with this application. Poor quality of copies of such items shall be ignored.

[Extra sheets may be attached]
	

	A.3.4
If tests are available for your product which have been carried out on alternative similar products but not on yours please explain why:-

	

	


	A.4
Product Details

A.4.1
How long has your product been available in the market?

Less than one year

1-3 years 

3-10 years

More than 10 years

A.4.2
List below in which other countries your product is available:-

A.4.3
How long has this product been available in Oman or a country with a similar tropical climate? Such countries, if not Oman, shall be listed below:-

1-3 years 

3-10 years

More than 10 years

A.4.4
Attach to this application form a list of projects where this product has been used in the past. Omani projects shall be listed first. The list shall provide the following information:-

(i)
Project name and location 

(ii)
Client names, address, fax No.

(iii)
Date when project was completed or the number of years the product has been used by the client listed.

A.5
Technical Specification Documentation

A.5.1
Is a full technical specification of your product available?

Yes

No.

A.5.2
If your answer to A.5.1 is “yes” has the information been submitted with this application?

Yes

No

A.5.3
If your answer to A.5.1 is “no” do not continue with this application until such information is available.




	PART  ‘B’  - HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT ASPECT

B.1
Health Aspects

B.1.1
Does your product comply with all application PDO National and International health standards and regulations?

Yes

No

B.1.2
If your answer to B.1.1 was “yes” provide details of the relevant standards with which your product complies:-

[Extra sheet may be added]

B.1.3
If your answer to B.1.1 was “no” provide details and explanation [if any] for non-compliance:-

[Extra sheet may be added]

B.1.4
Does your product contribute to a healthier situation for employees or is the effect neutral?

Healthier 

Neutral 

B.1.5
If your product does promote a healthier situation provide your justification/expectation here:-

[Extra sheet may be added]

B.2
Safety Aspect

B.2.1
Does your product comply with all application PDO National and International safety standards and regulations?

Yes

No

B.2.2
If your answer to B.2.1 was “yes” provide details of the relevant standards with which your product complies:-

B.2.3
If your answer to B.2.1 was “no” provide details and explanation for non-compliance:-

 


	B.2.4
Does your product contribute to a safer environment or safer working conditions for employees or is the effect neutral?

Safer 

Neutral

B.2.5
If your answer to B.2.4 was “safer” provide your justification/ explanation here:-

B.3
Environment Aspects

B.3.1
Does your product comply with PDO National and International safety standards and regulations?

Yes

No

B.3.2
If your answer to B.3.1 was “yes” provide details of the relevant standards with which your product complies:-

[Extra sheet may be added]

B.3.3
If your answer to B.3.1 was “no” provide details and explanation for non-compliance:-

[Extra sheet may be added]

B.3.4
Does your product contribute to a better environment or result in improved environment conditions or is it neutral?

Better

B.3.5
If your answer to B.3.4 was “better” provide your justification/ explanation here:-

[Extra sheet may be added]

B.3.6
can your product be re-cycled at the end of its lifetime?

Yes

No

B3.7
If your answer to B.3.5 was “yes” is there specialist services required to perform the re-cycling? Please specify:




	PART  ‘C’  - LOCAL BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

C.1
Manufacturing

C.1.1
Where is your product manufactured?

a) 100% manufactured in Oman

b) Assembled only in Oman

c) Manufactured and imported from GCC country


d) Manufactured and imported from elsewhere


If a) provide details of manufacturer [name, address, telephone No. and fax].


If b) provide details of local assembling company and manufacturers country of origin of the parts or materials.


If c) provide details of manufacturer [name, address, telephone No. and fax].


If d) provide details of manufacturer [name, address, telephone No. & fax and country of manufacture if different from address given].

C.1.2
Do you maintain a qualified workforce in Oman who can install or carry out maintenance of your product if required by PDO?

Yes

No

C1.3
If your answer to C.1.2 was “yes” answer the following:

Size of workforce ……………………………… 

% of Omani staff ……………………………… 

List of supply and install contracts complied in Oman in the past 3 years [include client details]. Attach list to application.





	C1.4
If your product is imported, is the importation carried out by:-

	
	a)
a local Agent or Trading Company, give details 

	 ………………………………….. 


	or 

	
	b)
other method, give details

	 …………………………………… 


	C1.5
If your product is 100% manufactured in Oman answer the following:-

	
	Location of factory(ies)

	……………………………….. 


	Size of factory(ies) in square meters

	………………………………… 


	Total number of staff

	 ………………………………… 


	Percentage of Omani staff

	 ………………………………….. 


	C1.6
If your product is assembled in Oman, answer the following:-

	
	Location of assembly plant

	 ………………………………… 


	Size of plant in square meters

	 …………………………………. 


	Total number of staff

	 …………………………………. 


	Percentage of Omani staff

	 …………………………………. 


	PART ‘D’ GUARANTEES AND AFTER SALES SERVICE

	
	D.1
Guarantees

	
	D.1.1
What is the expected life span of your product:-

	
	· Less than 3 years

			
				
	· Between 3 and 6 years

			
				
	· Between 6 and 10 years

			
				
	· More than 10 years

			
				
	D.1.2
What period of 100% guarantee do you offer for the performance of your product against material/operational or manufacturing defects?

	
	· None 

			
				
	· 1 year

			
				
	· 2 years

			
				
	· More than 2 years 

			
				
	
Provide details of the guarantees offered specifying clearly the duration and all conditions [if any]:-

[Extra sheet may be added]
	

	


	D.2
After-sales Service

D.2.1
Do you have an established “after-sales” services organisation in Oman?


Yes


No

D.2.2
If your answer to D.2.1 was ‘yes” answer the following:-

· Do you have any on-site repair capability  to deal with defects or maintenance of your product?


Yes


No

· If “yes” specify the number of staff you employ for this purpose.


1 to 5


5 to 20


Over 20

· Where applicable, do you have workshop facilities for after-sales servicing etc.?


Yes


No


N/A

· What size is your workshop facility [in sq. meters)


10 -050


50 – 100


150 -0300


Over 300

· How many staff are employed in your workshop


1 – 5


5 – 20 


Over 20

· What is the availability of your after-sales services?


24 hrs/day


8 hrs/day


On request 


Other

· How fast do you respond [on average] to a services request?


Same day 


Within 3 days


Within 2 weeks

· How many service vehicles do you have dedicated to after-sales service?


1 – 5


5 – 20 


Over 20

D.2.3
Do you carry a full range of spares/spare parts or replacement stock of your product in Oman?

Yes

D.2.4
If full ranges of spare parts are not available write an explanation below. Your explanation shall state what spares and spare parts are available, the situation regarding obtaining spare from the country of origin of your product, a statement confirming your commitment to provide good after-sales service and an outline of how you propose to carry this out.

[Extra sheet may be added]




	PART ‘E’ MISCELLANEOUS  ITEMS

E.1
Market Forces Related to Your Product

E.1.1
Approximately how may competitors are there in Omani market with your product?


1 – 3 


3 -10


Over 10

E.1.2
How does your product compare in terms of cost with your competitors?


Very competitive


Competitive


Not competitive

E.2
Miscellaneous Items

E.2.1
Is your application related to a particular project?


No, it is a general application for Project Approval.


Yes, it is a special application for a particular project.


Give project details:-

E.2.2
If you have any further comments in support of your application not covered elsewhere in this application form you may include them here:-

[Extra sheet may be added]




	PART ‘F’ GENERAL

F.1
Verification 


I hereby declare that to the best of my knowledge, I have answered these questions truthfully and I have not left out any information that could have negative affects on the approval of the product proposed by our company.


.………………………………… 


Signed on behalf of my company


Company stamp

………………………………. 


Signatories Name 
………………………………. 

Position

………………………………. 


Date


………………………………. 

Place


………………………………. 

F.2
Contact Names and Numbers


Name


……………………………….. 

Position

……………………………….. 


Telephone Nos.

……………………………….. 


Fax No. 

……………………………….. 

F.3
Attachments


List here the attachments you have made to this application form. Extra pages should clearly indicate the question number reference in the top right hand corner

[Extra sheet may be added]

Ref:  General\Functional\Product Approval\Product Approval form.doc



Guidelines for Registration of A Local Vendor, Pre-Contract Award, for The Supply of A Product:  For definitions of key words- see page 5
Items below are extracted from Vendor Registration Guidelines GU364.  The full and controlled version of Vendor Registration Guidelines GU364 reside in www.pdo.co.om/PDO/CommercialInfo/.  GU364 will be reviewed and updated when changes in management procedures occur and the same will be reflected in this form on the web site.  Once this form or GU364 is printed it is not controlled.  Refer to the form on the website for latest updates.

Background: PDO maintains a list of approved Vendors for the supply of products for its oil and gas operations throughout Oman.  The registration of Vendors with PDO intends to ensure that Contracts are awarded to proven, technically capable and financially viable Vendors. 
General:  This document is intended to give Vendors and PDO users a simple guidance to the relevant legal rules applicable to setting up and conducting business in Oman.  Independent legal advice and or tax advice shall be taken by Vendors before and throughout their engagement in business transactions with PDO; and while this information provided herein is believed to be accurate, no warranty is given.

Foreign ownership:  The Ministry of Commerce and Industry will normally grant a license for the establishment of a commercial, industrial or tourism business in Oman to an Omani Company. The foreign interest in such Company is not, normally, permitted to exceed 49%, although in certain exceptional circumstances this can be increased.  Following Oman’s entry into the World Trade Organization in 2000, the foreign ownership permitted might be increased to 70%. 

Agency:  A commercial agent in Oman can enter into an agency agreement with a foreign Vendor.  Such agency must be registered with the Ministry of Commerce and Industry. The terms of the agency agreement are to be agreed between the Principal and the agent.  A Principal can appoint more than one local agent for the same product.  

Taxation:  Applicable corporate income tax rates in Oman depend on the type of entity and extent of foreign participation.  For businesses wholly owned by Omani nationals, and other companies incorporated and registered in the Sultanate of Oman, a single rate of 12% of taxable profits in excess of RO. 30,000 is applicable.  For branches of foreign companies the rates range from 0 – 30% with the top rate of tax being payable on taxable profits of over RO. 100,000.  
Application by a local Vendor,  pre-Contract award, for the supply of products:  The Vendor shall address a request for registration to OmanTradanet L.L.C,.PO Box 425, PC 118, Sultanate of Oman, or submit it to the OmanTradanet office, prior to submitting a bid for any tender.  Pre-registration documents submission queries can be addressed to e-mail  ixsupport@otn.com.om or Tel:.+968 24153200 or Fax:+968 24153205.
Commercial and technical submission:  For tenders not floated via the Public Open Tender (POT) on www.pdotenders.com bidding for both technical and commercial is, normally, restricted to Vendors already approved and registered with PDO. The default for commercial submission for POT and non POT tenders is reverse auction via electronic bidding.  

Technical and financial assessment for a product Vendor:
· Team: PDO Treasury along with a PDO assessment team nominated by the Corporate Functional Discipline Head is responsible for assessing the Vendor.
· Assessment:  At the product Vendor’s technical evaluation stage the Corporate Functional Discipline Head shall coordinate the technical evaluation of the product Vendor.  The Corporate Functional Discipline Head shall request the product Vendor for a review of its product.  If the product is acceptable, a visit to the Vendor and/or Principal for an assessment, as deemed necessary by the Corporate Functional Discipline Head will be made.  
· Cost: The Vendor shall be responsible for the cost associated with the assessment outside Oman. This shall include air tickets, land transportation in the Country of assessment, accommodation and normal daily living allowance for each assessment team member. The Vendor shall deposit the estimated amount in the PDO’s account in advance. The Vendor shall obtain the banking details and the account number from PDO Treasury on telephone number + (968) 24677271  Upon completion of the assessment Treasury shall reimburse any balance to the Vendor.  Estimated cost for the assessment is as follows:
Europe/China/Japan/USA -  $20,000

India and Pakistan - $ 7,000 

Gulf Countries - $ 5,000

Oman - On PDO’s account. 

The Corporate Functional Discipline Head shall estimate and advise the Vendor on the estimated cost for a location not covered above or where there has been a change on the estimate provided in this document
Report: The Corporate Functional Discipline Head shall authorise the assessment report and clearly highlight any registration restrictions in the remarks section of the registration cover sheet. Supplier Support (FPS24) shall incorporate these remarks into the Approved Vendors for Material and Equipment (AVME) list in PDO EDMS which shall be referred to when bid lists are being compiled.
Acceptance of a product Vendor:  On the Vendor’s technical approval by the Corporate Function Discipline Head the Head of Business Support (FPS) shall issue a registration acceptance certificate to the Vendor.  Under normal circumstances, the whole registration process, from the receipt of the complete registration request and related documents by OmanTradanet to the issuance of the certificate, takes maximum 90 days for products not requiring audits and 180 days following receipt of audit fees by PDO for products requiring audit.  When an audit is called for, the audit will be scheduled to take place minimum, 90 days following the receipt of the audit fees.   After minimum two weeks following submission of your application and all related documents check your registration status on the Vendor Registration Monitoring Report available on www 
Rejection of a product Vendor:  Where a Vendor’s registration has not been accepted,  the Head of Business Support (FPS) shall advise the Vendor by a letter, clearly outlining the area of deficiency and weakness.  

Registration of a product Vendor (See below for stockist/distributor):  Supplier Support (FPS24) shall register the Vendor in Omnicom and in the Approved Vendors for Material and Equipment (AVME) list in PDO Livelink (EDMS).  The registered Vendor shall, normally, be the local agent. The Principal, if present, shall, normally, be the manufacturer of the product which the local agent represents and not a regional office or a distributor.  In a case where a manufacturer is represented by a local agent but the manufacturer would, however, like to compete with the local agent then the manufacturer can be considered for registration.  The registered Vendor shall not supply PDO with a non PDO approved product and shall supply the product only from a Principal that PDO has approved and registered the product for. 
Registration of a stockist/distributor:  Supplier Support (FPS24) shall register the stockist/distributor only in the following categories:  Civil, General, Computer & Telecoms, Safety, Hand Tools, Lubricants and Marine products.  Supplier Support (FPS24) shall register the stockist/distributor in Omnicom and in the Approved Vendors for Material and Equipment (AVME) list in PDO Livelink (EDMS). The registered Vendor shall normally be the local stockist./distributor.  The Principal shall be the manufacturer or a foreign stockist of the product which the local stockist/distributor represents and not a regional office or a distributor.  The registered local stockist/distributor shall not supply PDO with a non PDO approved product and shall supply the product only from a manufacturer or a foreign stockist that PDO has approved and registered the product for.

Transmission of documents:  Requests For Quotations, Purchase Orders, Product Receipt confirmations, Payment Notifications, as applicable, plus most of the procurement related documents are transmitted electronically. The Vendor shall contact OMAN TRADANET on telephone number + (968) 24153200, email ixsupport@otn.com.om to register for the digital document exchange service.  No fee shall be charged to the Vendor for the registration or for the receipt of documents from PDO.
Duration of registration:  Registration duration shall be as follows:

- An Agency:  As per the duration stated on the Ministry of Commerce and Industry Agency Certificate.

- A local manufacturer:   As per the duration stated on the Manufacturer’s permit. 

PDO has the right to extend or terminate the Vendor’s registration to suit its operational needs.   

Renewal of registration:  The Vendor is responsible for the initiation of the renewal process.  PDO reserves the right to exclude from tendering, any Vendor whose registration has expired. The Vendor shall address the request for registration renewal to OmanTradanet L.L.C,.PO Box 425, PC 118, Sultanate of Oman, or submit it to the OmanTradanet office.  Pre-registration renewal documents submission queries can be addressed to e-mail  ixsupport@otn.com.om or   Tel:.+968 24153200 or Fax:+968 24153205.
Business Principles:  PDO’s general business principles insist on honesty, integrity and fairness in all aspects of its business and PDO expects the same from its Vendors.  Its Contracting out policy is on the basis of competitive bidding, with transparent procedures, providing equal opportunities to qualified and approved Vendors
Data retention:  Supplier Support (FPS24) shall ensure that all documents relating to Registration, including application, evaluation, acceptance, rejection, referral, updating, re-appraisal, re-grading or de-registration are retained safely and securely as follows:
-  Registered Vendors: Throughout the registration life

-  De-registered Vendors:  For a period of 4 years, before they are archived for 2 years.  (Reference Finance Procedure Manual section H3 – registration documents are to be retained for 6 years).

Glossary of definitions, terms and abbreviations 

- PDO:  Petroleum Development Oman L.L.C

- Vendor:  In this context, mainly, includes a commercially registered supplier of a product including a stockist, except where specified separately or differently.  

- Company:  Vendor

- Corporate Functional Discipline Head:  In this context is the sponsor of the particular product group

- Oman: The Sultanate of Oman
- Contract: In this context means an agreement between PDO and the Vendor to supply a product(s) at an agreed price and period and agreed specifications and conditions

- Product Group and Service Code (PGSC):  A unique identification code assigned to each buying description of a PDO approved product or service
- Yellow Card/Red Card system:  A system for measuring the performance of PDO registered Vendors in various aspects, identifying non compliance and enforcing remedial actions

- Principal:  In this context is, normally, the manufacturer of the product which the local agent represents or the foreign stockist of the product which the local agent represents and not a regional office or a distributor
Related business control documents references 

- With Holding Tax Guidelines GU 270

- Contracts And Procurement Procedures PR 1233

- Business Principles 

- Conflict Of Interest Guidelines 

- Online Bidding Procedures

- Yellow Card/Red Card Procedures:  MoM Vendor Delivery Performance and UEC Card System 4/12/2005.

- Vendor Delivery Performance Stretch Target Procedures  

- Human Resources Manual PR 150

- Business Control Incident Procedures PR 1617 

- Blow The Whistle Procedures PR 1572

- Royal Decree 87/96 on ‘Law of Income Tax on Companies and amendment SD 54/2003
- Finance Procedure Manual section H3

- Tender Board Minutes dated 24/10/2004)
The release of the above Business control documents to the Vendor partially or fully is conditional to the security classification of the document. 
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